
1 

 

SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Town Hall Council Chambers 

March 27, 2017, Monday 

 

Present:    Patrick O’Connor, President 

    Michael Smart, Vice President 

    Robert Conlon, Councilor  

Jane Hackett, Councilor 

Ed Harrington, Councilor 

Rebecca Haugh, Councilor 

Thomas J. Lacey, Councilor 

Arthur Mathews, Councilor 

Brian McDonald, Councilor 

   

Absent:   Kenneth DiFazio, Councilor 

    Michael Molisse, Councilor     

        

Also Present:   Ted Langill, Chief of Staff 

Joseph Callanan, Town Solicitor 

    Lee Hultin, Asst. Town Clerk 

    Richard Swanson, Town Auditor 

    

Recording Secretary:   Mary Barker 

 

President O’Connor called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. After the Pledge of 

Allegiance, Town Clerk Kathy Deree called the roll, with one member absent. President 

Mathews reported that Councilor Molisse was unable to attend due to a prior family 

commitment.  

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Councilor Haugh announced that the Mayor and his staff will present the State of North 

Weymouth, sponsored by the North Weymouth Civic Association, at the McCulloch 

Building on Tuesday April 11, 7-9 PM.   

 

Councilor Mathews announced the Annual Herring Run Clean- Up- Day is scheduled, 

(rain or shine) on April 1, 2017. Volunteers can meet at 9 AM at Stephen Rennie Park.  

 

Council President O’Connor announced the Weymouth-based band “Pulitzer Prize 

Fighter” has been invited to participate in the WZLX Boston Emissions 2017 Rock and 

Roll Rumble. Twenty-four bands will compete over four days. They are the youngest 

entrants to be invited to participate, and he wished them luck. 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

Union Point Update from LStar Management: 

-Kyle Corkum/Managing Partner and Founder 

-Matthew Barry/Division President 

-William Ryan/Senior Consultant for Government Affairs and Community 

Outreach 

 

Council President O’Connor invited Mr. Corkum and Mr. Barry to present an update on 

the progress of the development of Union Point. There are significant changes to the 

layout of the project. Mr. Corkum provided an overview. He showed a series of short 

videos of the process and reviewed the Notice of Project Change, the applications that are 

pending, the status of the Prodrive project which is in Phase 1, Smart Cities Initiatives, 

and Demolition.  

 

The first video was an aerial view of the north end of the property; the entrance by the 

plane. Shea Boulevard will be replaced by this North Gate entrance; they plan to move 

the road to the other side and make the park a focal point. This is by the North Gateway, 

where the concentration of age-restricted housing is located. The Rec complex is 

scheduled to open Labor Day weekend. The gym building will remain. It will be a 

signature building, with a restaurant centrally located in the middle. There are specimen 

trees into the park. The hangar building will become a high-end grocery, there will be a 

cinema and high-end office building added to the mix.  Market Square sits below the 

hangar. Market Square park will open late spring or summer; it’s in discussion with 

developers. It’s not as theoretical as it seems- it’s in disclosure agreements with 

developers. Once they aren’t bound by confidentiality agreements, they can release more 

details on these. There will be a concentration of bars, and restaurants around the lake 

(man- made) and will strive to create a nightlife and dynamic area.  

 

Mr. Corkum then reviewed the NPC and details of how to provide sewer and water.  It 

will be a collaborative effort. They submitted the NPC and the state has granted an 

extension to April 21, 2017 to the comment period to give them more time to prepare. He 

reviewed the firms providing the consulting services for the various components-

environmental, oversight of the NPC process, water and wastewater specialists, and 

transportation. The State has granted an extension of the comment period. Other 

specialists are contributing to parallel initiatives, such as the Smart Cities. Modifications 

have been made to plans prior to filing as a result of previous discussions at Council.  

 

It was confirmed that there will be no intermingling of water between Union Point and 

Weymouth’s systems. Water supply to Union Point will be a dedicated pipe from Quincy, 

who has the capacity. The intent is to bring 10M gallons to allow for a safety net for 

South Shore communities. They have made major strides shaping the direction for the 

solution of a water source for the project which is also in keeping with Weymouth’s 

short, medium and long-range needs. Sewer will be a model for sustainability. They 

would like to see neighborhood-wide systems which can produce power. The buildings 

will capture solar, wind and geothermal power to generate more within the property. This 



3 

 

could be a solution which will allow a more incremental flexible system that will allow 

for generation of power. This is a clear picture of a plan that should not burden 

Weymouth.  

 

President O’Connor asked what steps are necessary during the NPC and MEPA process. 

Mr. Barry responded that the existing FEIR will carry through during the process. As 

they plan for growth, they need about a year to determine what the additional growth will 

require. There should be about 3 years of solid growth, and they will have a long-range 

plan in place for years 3-10. President O’Connor responded that the acquisition of a 

permanent water source is a major take-away. Mr. Corkum responded that the solutions 

seem obvious and they will show no restraint in the design, so they will not need the 

interim agreement. The design should be complete by late fall; construction will be swift. 

Mr. Corkum assured all that this project has been worked on daily so they can focus on 

opportunities to continue development.  

 

Vice President Smart reviewed the interim map for the line. He asked if the primary 

alternative is a separate line from Quincy to Union Point. De-salinization is not a perfect 

solution but is an alternative option. They will work with the Mayor’s Office to 

determine what infrastructure improvements that could piggyback with the connections. 

He also asked abut the sewer treatment. A bioreactor will take food waste from the 

restaurants which could produce enough energy to generate power for the entire age-

restricted district. They are excited about the technology, and they can build it 

incrementally. The improvements which were agreed to in the interim agreement will still 

occur.  

 

Vice President Smart also asked if the tax incremental financing plan is in place with 

Prodrive. Mr. Barry responded that it is in place and the project is moving forward. The 

first phase is for 350,000 square feet with 1.5 million total with options. In the original 

planning and design 650 jobs were anticipated; it does not include the optional land. They 

are in discussion with other groups because Prodrive is in. The potential commercial is 

huge. With the NPC and added commercial growth, the parkway was extended off the 

property. He suggested that the off-based improvements should be considered to avoid 

delay.   

 

Councilor Harrington asked about water restrictions. He has asked the Mayor to work 

with the developer to work towards bringing water to the town, and the design might 

include interconnectivity. Mr. Corkum responded that there are two drivers behind the 

current plan; the need to not rely on Weymouth’s water, but to serve as a water safety net. 

This cannot be accomplished with de-salinization, so it’s off the table.  600,000 gallons 

are currently locked up and this will not be needed in the future. If the drought continues, 

though, the town may need another source of water.  

 

Councilor Conlon noted he is concerned about the water solution. He asked if they are 

running a pipe or using existing MWRA piping. Mr. Corkum responded that it is a 

conceptual plan, but they can increase capacity by building a pipe through Weymouth 

and using the existing Quincy pipe. They can build a dedicated segment through Quincy. 



4 

 

He is not looking the cheapest, but the most expedient and effective solution. It will be 

figured out in the next few weeks. The administration will determine the most optimal 

route to the solution. Councilor Conlon asked about the construction timeline. Mr. Barry 

responded about a year before construction begins.  

 

Councilor DiFazio is pleased with the independent water solution and asked for 

additional information on the sewer technology and what the preference will be. Mr. 

Corkum responded that it is new technology and is being provided by new partners. This 

is a change to deploy cutting edge technology new to the area. It will be used as a 

showroom for the rest of the world, he noted that it is in flux. As details get flushed out it 

will get finalized. It is exciting to be able to turn this into an energy producer. None of the 

solutions include taking Rockland and Abington into the water system. There are 

logistical, political, regulatory hurdles with mixing the systems.  

 

Councilor DiFazio asked how the traffic generation increase will be handled. Mr. 

Corkum responded that they intend to explore this over the next year. Totals are just 

coming out and they need more time. This is their one opportunity to do something 

transformative for the region and they need the time to do what they must to make it 

happen.   

 

Councilor Mathews asked if the document is available for the public’s review. Mr. 

Corkum responded that this is the first step. If someone wants a hard copy they can 

request it from LStar. They can put it on their website by the end of the week. He also 

noted he wholeheartedly supported the water solution but asked if Rockland and 

Abington have committed to unlocking capacity, and if there is an agreement? Mr. Barry 

responded that it is in negotiation. Everything moving forward is in Weymouth right 

now, and hopefully they will be able to unlock the capacity. They are committed to 

keeping them apart and separate solutions.  

 

Councilor Haugh supports the water solution and appreciates the segregation of North 

Weymouth being off the table. The NPC unites the town to get a solution and she looks 

forward to it.  

 

Councilor Hackett noted the NPC represents a significant milestone in the life of the 

project. She is pleased with the direction of the commercial and recreational components 

of the project, and is satisfied with the water and solutions and shares the concerns 

surrounding the traffic impacts. 

  

Councilor Lacey agreed this is a great milestone. This is what they have been waiting for 

for fifteen years. He urged they go after the traffic approach in a big way. He also called 

out public safety; this is a massive build out and a lot of activity is going on there now. 

He is concerned with the ability to sustain it. It’s time to engage in discussion regarding a 

first responder building and partnership. He commended the work by President O’Connor 

in his role in the State Senate, Representative Mariano, and Vice President Smart and 

their leadership efforts. He urged that LStar stay more actively engaged with the Council.  

 



5 

 

Councilor McDonald noted it’s a great turn of events. He noted the major tax incentive 

and asked if there are other costs being incurred. Mr. Corkum provided some background 

on a project that was underway and stalled in Frisco, TX that was jumpstarted by the use 

of tax incentives which successfully brought the project to fruition. The model is 

successful elsewhere.  Only the first phase of the Prodrive project includes a land 

commitment. Prodrive has also committed to a robust partnership with the STEM 

program in Weymouth Schools.  

 

Mr. Corkum reviewed the plans for the Recreation complex. They will have three full 

sized fields operational by Labor Day weekend. He then noted that the demolition of 

Buildings 75 and 76 are completed. Fourteen others are coming down this month. Shea 

Boulevard goes away in a month. Removal of the old infrastructure will allow for 

development to move forward.  

 

Councilor Harrington asked if there is administrative oversight of the whole project. Mr. 

Langill responded that depending on which part of the project, different departments are 

involved. Planning, Mayor’s Office and the Council have oversight. The Planning 

Department is busier than ever. They are also in constant contact with SRA. Mr. Corkum 

responded that they are all shaping the policies. This will be a smart sustainable plan with 

the future in mind. He looks forward to the public safety discussions to determine how to 

protect the new community. Council President O’Connor noted that the change in the 

Enabling Legislation opened this up and control has returned to the town. There is a level 

of transparency and accountability.  

 

Vice President Smart commented that they will have to adhere to certain construction 

standards and the town has inspectional oversight. The Council has focused on the public 

safety aspect for years. Discussion has included the land available for a school and 

reclamation of the Fire Station building there. He asked about the restaurants. Mr. 

Corkum responded that they have a vision and are committed to creating a place that will 

attract people. There are a number of licenses in the plan. The restaurant district will 

generate meals and hotel tax dollars.  

 

Councilor Hackett asked about hockey space and Mr. Corkum responded that it will be 

located off Market Square. They are currently in negotiation.  

 

Councilor Conlon commented that this has to be welcome news for the first residents. 

Mr. Corkum responded that this has been a group effort. They have met with them on a 

regular basis. 

 

Councilor McDonald asked if there is still discussion of movie studio space. Mr. Corkum 

responded that they are in discussion with producers for the next movie deal. They have 

determined a site to locate a studio.  

 

President O’Connor thanked all parties for their presentation and information and looks 

forward to continued progress and updates.  

 



6 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

The next regular meeting of the Town Council Meeting has been scheduled for Monday, 

April 3, 2016. At 9:07 PM; there being no further business, a MOTION was made by 

Vice President Smart to adjourn the meeting and was seconded by Councilor Mathews. 

UNANIMOUSLY VOTED. 
 

Respectfully Submitted by Mary Barker as Recording Secretary. 
 

 

Approved by Council President Patrick O’Connor 
 

Voted unanimously on 18 April 2017 


